
 
   Planning                                                      Lower Saucon Township                                      February 19, 2009 
Commission                                                                Minutes                                                                7:00 PM   
 
 
I. OPENING  

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The Planning Commission meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council was called 
to order on Thursday, February 19, 2009, 7:00 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA, with 
Mr. John Landis, Chair, presiding. 

   
ROLL CALL:  Present:  John Landis, Chair; Tom Maxfield; John Lychak; Haz Hijazi; Dan Miller, 
Engineer from Hanover Engineering; Chris Garges, Zoning Officer; Judy Stern Goldstein, Planner from 
Boucher & James and Linc Treadwell, Solicitor.  Absent, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie, John Noble 

 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

None 
 

III. REORGANIZATION 
 

A. ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to nominate John Landis as Chair of the Planning Commission.  
SECOND BY: Mr. Hijazi 

Mr. Landis asked if anyone had any other nominations?  No one raised their hand.  He asked if 
anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 
 

B. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Hijazi moved to nominate Tom Maxfield as Vice Chair of the Planning Commission.  
SECOND BY: Mr. Lychak 

Mr. Landis asked if anyone had any other nominations?  No one raised their hand.  He asked if 
anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 
 

C. ELECTION OF SECRETARY 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Landis moved to nominate Fran LaBuda as Secretary of the Planning Commission.  
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Landis asked if anyone had any other nominations?  No one raised their hand.  He asked if 
anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 
 

D. DESIGNATION OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING, TIME, PLACE AND DATE 
FOR 2009 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Hijazi moved for the third Thursday of the month at 7:00 PM at Town Hall.  
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Landis asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised 
their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 
 



Planning Commission Meeting 
February 19, 2009 
 

Page 2 of 5 

IV. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. CHARLES & KRISTINA TAYLOR – WYDNOR HALL SITE PLAN SP 01-09 – 3612 OLD 
PHILADELPHIA PIKE – TIME LIMIT 04/15/09 

 
Kristina Taylor was present.  Dennis Reiss, contractor on the project, was present.  Ms. Taylor said 
her and her husband, Charles, are owners of Wydnor Hall Inn.  They have already begun, but what 
they want to do is, they took a 200 year old structure that was on their property and are renovating 
it into a guest house that would become another unit for their bed and breakfast inn. 
 
Mr. Garges said the structure that is there is basically an old structure that has been there for a long 
time and it doesn’t have a roof on it.  It had been sitting there for awhile.  They came in and got a 
permit.  In the interest of them moving forward over the winter, they noted and took a risk with any 
work they do over and above that.  They do have a permit. 
 
Mr. Maxfield said the accessory structure is not the cottage, but the garage in the back?  Mr. 
Garges said the cottage.  That was a foundation and wall set up already there.  They put a little 
overhang on it and a roof on it.  Ms. Taylor approached the Planning Commission and gave them 
some photographs to look at. 
 
Mr. Hijazi said he drove by that place today and it looks like you did add like a second floor. 
 
Mr. Garges said the Taylor’s filed a special exception application which they filed for the Zoning 
Hearing Board for March, so they are moving forward.   
 
Mr. Landis said the question is, is this a land development?  Attorney Treadwell said he would say 
that technically, it’s a land development, but he doesn’t see any reason to go through the land 
development process.  Ms. Stern Goldstein said it wasn’t submitted as a land development.  Mr. 
Landis said technically it is.  We should probably waive that, by recommendation. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to waive as stated above. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Hijazi 

Mr. Landis said because of what you are doing, you don’t have to go through all the 
requirements of the land development, which for something like this, would be overdoing it. 
Ms. Stern Goldstein said the Council will act on this.  Mr. Landis said yes, we don’t have any 
power whatsoever other than to recommend.  Then it’s Council who has the final word.  Ms. 
Stern Goldstein said but the plans that were submitted were submitted as site plan to be in 
conjunction with the ZHB for special exception.  Attorney Treadwell said what Judy is saying 
is she reviewed it as a site plan, and so did Dan Miller.  Mr. Landis said what we are saying is 
we waive the land development so that all works out.  Mr. Landis asked if anyone in the 
audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Craig Kologie, Fran LaBuda) 
 
 Mr. Landis said did you have a chance to look over Boucher & James letter?  Ms. Taylor said yes 

we have.  Mr. Landis said they have asked a number of things, is there anything you wish to cover?  
Ms. Stern Goldstein said she did receive a letter in the mail today from Joseph H. Boody, who is 
their surveyor and engineer and he wrote a response letter to Boucher & James letter to clarify a 
number of the issues. Some of the things he’s giving simple answer to.  The largest issues are the 
ones you can go to the Zoning Hearing Board for, the special exception, the variance to have the 
guest room permitted by ordinance and the variance because the overhang falls within the front 
yard setback.  Those are the three big issues.  The answers they gave need to go on the plan as 
notes.  Mr. Landis said basically you will comply to what Ms. Stern Goldstein just stated. 

 



Planning Commission Meeting 
February 19, 2009 
 

Page 3 of 5 

 Mr. Maxfield said on the plan, in between the cottage and the Black River, there is what seems to 
be a culvert there that drains, what is that draining?  Do you have any idea?  Ms. Taylor said it’s 
from the parking lot.  Mr. Maxfield showed them the area.  Ms. Taylor said it’s draining rain water 
that primarily comes off of Old Philadelphia Pike into the parking lot.  Mr. Maxfield said it’s a 
grate in the parking lot that drains down into that?  Ms. Taylor said it’s not a grate, it’s just a way 
of directing the water.  Mr. Landis said do you have any flooding when Black River Creek runs 
over?  Ms. Taylor said we’re very high above.   

 
 Mr. Maxfield said the cottage, will it have any sort of water, septic or anything like that in the 

future?  Is it going to have a sink?  You aren’t allowed to have kitchen facilities or anything like 
that?  Mr. Reiss said it’ll have a bathroom and a shower, but no sink.  It will be tied into the 
existing line that comes into the structure.    

 
 Mr. Landis said right now you have five units and this will be the sixth?  How many parking spaces 

are there?  Ms. Taylor said they have an excess of the required number.  Mr. Landis said how many 
is that?  Ms. Taylor said she thinks it is one and a quarter per unit or one and a half per unit.  Mr. 
Reiss said it’s on the plan.  It’s twelve existing spaces.   

 
 Ms. Stern Goldstein said basically with the response letter, the attachments that came with it, she 

would just hope the applicant would have the proper notes on the plan. 
 
 Mr. Landis said the next thing is the letter from Hanover Engineering of February13. Can you 

comply with everything on the letter?   Mr. Reiss said he did speak to their engineer.  The one thing 
that jumps out is the cistern.  It has been out of operation for a hundred years.  It’s basically a hole 
in a ground with a stone structure around it.  Mr. Landis said you need to state that on the plan.   

 
 Mr. Landis said one item that’s on here is the letter from the Fire Department.  Mr. Reiss said we 

did not receive that.  Mr. Landis said it basically wants you to put sprinklers in there, smoke 
detectors and CO2 in the cottage?  Mr. Reiss said the smoke detectors are hard wired, by code.  Mr. 
Landis said how many square feet is it?  Ms. Taylor said roughly about 800 square feet with the 
two floors.   

 
 Mr. Hijazi said is this addition going to be part of the bed and breakfast?  Ms. Taylor said yes, it 

would be a guest house for guests in the bed and breakfast.  Mr. Hijazi said you are expanding and 
adding an additional house.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s why they need a special exception.   

 
Mr. Garges said the Fire Department is also recommending lock box.  It costs about $100.00 and 
it’s a box that sits outside of the unit somewhere.  It’s a common key for all the emergency 
services, so if they get a call from our 911, and you were away, and someone was in there, they 
wouldn’t have to break in, they would have the County release the key, open the box, pull the key 
and get in.  You can get it through the Fire Department.  Mr. Garges said  you can install it and the 
Fire Department would come out there, and you hook the box up and you would give them the key. 
 
Mr. Miller spoke – could not hear, the microphone was not on. 
 
Attorney Treadwell said he had one suggestion and he thinks it would be very helpful for the 
applicant if you could get your engineer/surveyor to put those notes on the plans that Ms. Stern 
Goldstein referenced before you come to the Council meeting on March 4, 2009 because that takes 
a lot of those issues away.   
 
Mr. Reiss said they covered the special exception and the setback variance in their application.  Mr. 
Maxfield said you have possible variances listed in your letter.  One is for the sixth room. Second 
one is for the overhang.  Third one is the structure is 100 feet from the property line, which is done, 



Planning Commission Meeting 
February 19, 2009 
 

Page 4 of 5 

and the fourth one is location and dimensions of proposed surfacing of existing proposed off-street 
parking and loading spaces.  Ms. Stern Goldstein said they have the parking, so as long as they note 
those calculations on the plan, they are okay.  They need to draw in the actual spaces on the plan.  
Mr. Maxfield said there are two variances and a special exception for land development.   

 
Mr. Landis said what are our actions tonight?  Mr. Garges said if you have any recommendation to 
the Zoning Hearing board - if you feel it’s ready for preliminary site plan approval. 
 
Mr. Maxfield said he would not like to see any type, things that aren’t on the plan now, or any sort 
of expansion in the floodplain area.  We don’t want to see it go any closer to the creek.  Don’t 
expand your parking or anything like that. 
 
Attorney Treadwell said you already did the motion for the land development and that will go to 
Council.  You need a motion to approve the preliminary/final site plan subject to Hanover 
Engineering and Boucher & James letters.  Mr. Maxfield said is that going to be conditional on the 
variances at all?  Attorney Treadwell said your motion goes to the Zoning Hearing Board for their 
review while they are doing the two variances and the special exception.  Ms. Stern Goldstein said 
the site plan is only before you because they are asking for the special exception.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to recommend acceptance of the site plan per the Hanover Engineering 

letter of February 13, 2009 and the Boucher & James letter of February 11, 2009. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Lychak 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 

 
Attorney Treadwell said the sooner you can get those revised plans in, the better off you’ll be.  Mr. 
Landis said Council will want to see this complete.  Ms. Stern Goldstein said it needs to get to the 
Township by next Tuesday for the staff meeting and its needs to get in the packet by next 
Thursday.   

 
V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – DECEMBER 18, 2008 
 
MOTION BY: Mr. Lychak moved for approval of the December 18, 2008 minutes.  
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Landis asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised 
their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 
 

B. APPROVAL AND SIGNATURE OF PLANNING MODULE – REDINGTON ESTATES 
MAJOR 

 
Mr. Landis said what are they doing with their system, are they having a community system? Mr. 
Garges said they are going before Council for a community on lot system.  Attorney Treadwell said 
it’s a community on lot system that the Township will own one way or another.  They are putting 
up $50,000 into an escrow account with the Township for future replacement if it’s necessary.  The 
five houses will be billed an amount that’s a little above and beyond of what the normal sewer rate 
is in order to build up that fund so that the theory is if and when that sand mound needs to be 
replaced, we have enough money in the fund to do it. 
 
Mr. Hijazi said there two letters with different dates from Boucher & James, 12/09/08 and 12/24/08 
on Redington.  By quickly scanning them, they appear to be exactly the same.  Ms. Stern Goldstein 
said they thought they revised the plans, but it did not make it on paper.  Mr. Hijazi said it says 



Planning Commission Meeting 
February 19, 2009 
 

Page 5 of 5 

prepared by Lehigh Engineering November 29, 2005 and last revised November 13, 2008.  The 
other letter says dated November 29, 2005 and last revised December 9, 2008, so there’s a 
difference in the last revised.   

 
Mr. Landis said going back to the planning module, we are asking for a motion. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval and signature of the planning module – Redington Estates 

Major. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Hijazi 

Mr. Landis asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised 
their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 
 

C. 2008 ANNUAL REPORT – DISTRIBUTION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

Mr. Garges said the MPC requires this.  Mr. Landis said it’s just a description.  Mr. Maxfield said 
this is great.   

  
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

None 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION BY: Mr.  Maxfield moved for adjournment.  The time was  8:09 PM. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Hijazi 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – John Noble, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie) 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Mr. John Landis 
Chair 


	I. OPENING 
	CALL TO ORDER:  The Planning Commission meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council was called to order on Thursday, February 19, 2009, 7:00 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA, with Mr. John Landis, Chair, presiding.
	ROLL CALL:  Present:  John Landis, Chair; Tom Maxfield; John Lychak; Haz Hijazi; Dan Miller, Engineer from Hanover Engineering; Chris Garges, Zoning Officer; Judy Stern Goldstein, Planner from Boucher & James and Linc Treadwell, Solicitor.  Absent, Fran LaBuda, Craig Kologie, John Noble

